

Housing Trust Fund Allocation Plan Guide 2016





TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. General Information	4
HTF Allocation Plan	4
Submission Requirement	4
Deadline	4
Review Period	5
Approval Process	5
Need Assistance?	5
II. Grantee Information	6
III. Consolidated Plan Requirements	6
Citizen Participation Plan	6
Consolidated Plan Screen(s) To Revise	6
IV. Strategic Plan Requirements	7
Strategic Plan Screen(s) To Revise	7
V. Annual Action Plan Requirements	8
Annual Action Plan Screen(s) To Revise	8
HTF Funding Priorities	10
Recipient Application Requirements	14
Performance Goals and Benchmarks	14
VI. Other Requirements	14

Maximum Per-unit Development Subsidy Amount	14
Rehabilitation Standards	15
Resale and/or Recapture Provisions	15
HTF Affordable Homeownership Limits	16
State Limited Beneficiaries or Preferences	16
Refinancing of Existing Debt	17
VII. Grantee Certifications	17
VIII. Required Forms	17
viii. Nequii cu rui iiis	
IX. Resources	
	18
IX. Resources	18
IX. Resources HTF Resources	18
IX. Resources HTF Resources Consolidated Plan Resources	181818

HTF Allocation Plan

The Housing Trust Fund (HTF) Interim Rule (24 CFR Part 93) made the consolidated plan regulations at 24 CFR Part 91 applicable to the HTF. As a result, an HTF grantee (i.e., a State) must include HTF in its citizen participation plan (§ 91.115), strategic plan (§ 91.315), and annual action plan (§ 91.320). In addition, the State must submit to HUD for review and approval an HTF allocation plan with its annual action plan (§ 91.320(k)(5)). Also, as required in § 91.10, the HTF program must be administered by the State on the same program year it established for all grant programs covered by the consolidated plan.

The HTF allocation plan is an annual submission to HUD that describes how the State will distribute the HTF funds, including how it will use the funds to address its priority housing needs. The allocation plan also describes what activities may be undertaken with HTF funds and how recipients and projects will be selected.

Submission Requirement

HUD Notice CPD 12-009 requires a State submitting a consolidated plan on or after November 15, 2012 to use the eCon Planning Suite in IDIS to submit this plan and all subsequent consolidated plans, annual action plans, and consolidated annual performance and evaluations reports (CAPERs). However, the eCon Planning Suite does not currently contain the data fields to accommodate the HTF allocation plan. As a result, HUD developed this guide to assist the State in submitting the HTF allocation plan. The State may opt to use this sample form or to submit its allocation plan in a different format, provided that all required elements are addressed. Please visit the HTF website, www.hudexchange.info/htf for more guidance on the HTF program and HUD Notice CPD 16-07 Guidance for HTF Grantees on Fiscal Year 2016 Housing Trust Fund (HTF) Allocation Plans for more information on HTF allocation plans. This guide also contains a list of HTF and eCon Planning Suite resources that the State should reference before developing and submitting its HTF allocation plan. The State should also consult the Con Plan Quick Guide: Amending a Consolidated Plan and Action Plan for assistance on amending its consolidated plan and action plan.

Deadline

The State must submit an HTF allocation plan and make any amendments to its consolidated plan no later than **August 16, 2016.** Please note that some of the HTF allocation plan requirements will be completed in eCon Planning Suite in IDIS and the rest will be submitted as a Word document or PDF file to HUD. For 2016, the HTF allocation

plan must be submitted to both the local HUD CPD Field Office and to HUD's Office of Affordable Housing Programs at <a href="https://h

Review Period

The 45 day review period begins when (a) HUD receives the Standard Form 424 and certifications or email notification that the consolidated plan has been submitted in IDIS (for new action plans) or (b) HUD receives the Standard Form 424 and certifications or email notification that an <u>amended</u> action plan has been submitted in IDIS. The State should also complete and submit a Standard Form 1199A- Direct Deposit Sign up Form for deposit of its HTF grant funds.

Approval Process

The HTF allocation plan will be deemed approved 45 days after HUD receives the plan, unless HUD notifies the State that the plan is disapproved before expiration of the review period. Please note, if a State intends to use HTF funds to assist first-time homebuyers, it must set forth the guidelines for resale and recapture, and obtain HUD's specific, written approval, as required in § 93.304(f), separate and apart from the approval of the HTF allocation plan. The requirements for resale and recapture guidelines are the same as the HOME Program resale and recapture requirements, except for the income targeting requirements.

Need Assistance?

For assistance with the HTF allocation plan, the State should contact the local HUD CPD Field Office and/or send its question(s) to the HTF mailbox at https://www.hude.com/. For assistance with the eCon Planning Suite in IDIS, the State should contact Ask A Question on the HUD Exchange website at https://www.hudexchange.info/get-assistance/mv-question/.

II. GRANTEE INFORMATION

State:	FY 2016 HTF Allocation Amount:

III. CONSOLIDATED PLAN REQUIREMENTS

Citizen Participation Plan

The consolidated plan regulation at § 91.115 requires the State to include HTF in its citizen participation plan. Essentially, before adopting a consolidated plan, the State is required to adopt a citizen participation plan that describes the process for providing and encouraging citizens to participate in the development of the consolidated plan, the amendments to the consolidated plan and the performance report (CAPERS). For the purposes of HTF, the State is required to make the following information available to the public:

- the amount of HTF assistance the State expects to receive,
- the range of activities the State may undertake, including the estimated amount that will benefit extremely low-income households, and
- the State's plans to minimize displacement of persons and to assist any persons displaced.

If the State already conducted its citizen participation and included HTF in any citizen participation it performed for the other HUD formula grant programs, then the State does not need to conduct additional citizen participation for HTF. If the State has not yet conducted citizen participation or did not include HTF in the citizen participation it performed for other HUD formula grant programs, then it must conduct citizen participation to include HTF as part of its consolidated plan.

Consolidated Plan Screen(s) To Revise

The following screen in the eCon Planning Suite consolidated plan template in IDIS must be revised to include HTF.

■ **ES-05** / **AP-05 Executive Summary:** § 91.320(b)- The Executive Summary includes seven narratives: (1) Introduction; (2) Summary of Objectives and Outcomes; (3) Evaluation of Past Performance; (4) Summary of the Citizen Participation and Consultation Process; (5) Summary of Public Comments; (6) Summary of Comments Not Accepted; (7) Summary.

□ **PR-15 Citizen Participation:** § 91.115 and § 91.300(c)- revise this screen to provide a summary of the citizen participation efforts made for HTF, including efforts to broaden public participation, a summary of citizen comments or views on the plan, and a written explanation of comments not accepted and the reasons why these comments were not accepted.

IV. STRATEGIC PLAN REQUIREMENTS

The State must <u>amend</u> the affordable housing section of the strategic plan to include specific objectives that describe proposed accomplishments the State hopes to achieve and must specify the number of extremely low-income families to which the State will provide affordable housing to (homeownership- § 93.302; rental- § 93.304) over a specific period of time. The State can complete this requirement by including HTF on the **SP-45 Goals screen**.

Note: Directions on how to amend a plan are included at the end of this document.

Reminder: 100 percent of FY 2016 HTF funds must benefit extremely low-income households; a minimum of 80 percent must be used for rental housing; up to 10 percent may be used for homeownership housing; up to 10 percent may be used for administrative costs.

Strategic Plan Screen(s) To Revise

In addition to updating the affordable housing section of the strategic plan, the following screens in the eCon Planning Suite consolidated plan template in IDIS must be revised to include HTF.

SP-10 Geographic Priorities: § 91.315(a)(1)-	revise	this	screen	to	discuss	how
investments are allocated geographically.						

- □ **SP-25 Priority Needs:** § 91.315(a)(2)- revise this screen to indicate the general priorities for allocating investment of available resources among different needs.
- □ **SP-30 Influence of Market Conditions:** § 93.315(b)- revise this screen to describe how the characteristics of the housing market influenced the State's decisions regarding allocation priorities among the types of housing assistance.
- □ SP-35 Anticipated Resources: § 91.315(a)(4); § 91.320(c)(1) and (2)- revise this screen to identify the federal, state, local, and private resources expected to be available to the State to address priority needs and specific objectives identified in the strategic plan. Specifically, the State should add a program to this screen by

selecting "Add" in the *Action* column. This will open the **SP-36 Add Anticipated Resource** screen. The State should select "Other" in the *Anticipated Resource* field and enter "Housing Trust Fund" in the *Other Funding Source* field. The State should also select the "public - federal" radio button in the "Source" field and complete the rest of the fields on this screen for its HTF program.

□ **SP-45 Goals:** § 91.315(a)(4) and § 91.315 (b)(2)- revise this screen to summarize the State's priorities and the specific goals it intends to initiate and/or complete within the term of the strategic plan. The State must also ensure its five year goals include any accomplishments due to HTF funds and must also enter the number of extremely low-income families to which the State will provide assistance with its HTF funds.

V. ANNUAL ACTION PLAN REQUIREMENTS

The State must include HTF in its annual action plan or <u>amend</u> the plan to include HTF information as required in § 93.320(k)(5). The action plan must include an HTF allocation plan that describes the distribution of HTF funds, and establishes the application requirements and selection criteria of applications submitted by eligible recipients that meet the State's priority housing needs.

Annual Action Plan Screen(s) To Revise

The following screens in the eCon Planning Suite consolidated plan template in IDIS must be revised to include HTF.

- □ **AP-15 Expected Resources:** § 91.320(c)(1) and (2)- revise this screen to provide a concise summary of the federal resources expected to be available. The HTF resources added to the **SP-35 Anticipated Resources** screen will carry over to this screen.
- □ **AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives:** § 91.320(c)(3) and (e)- revise this screen to summarize the specific goals the State intends to initiate and/or complete within the term of the program year. Any HTF related goals and objectives entered on the **SP-45 Goals** screen will carry over to this screen.
- □ **AP-25 Allocation Priorities:** § 91.320(d)- revise this screen to describe the reasons for the State's allocation priorities and how the proposed distribution of funds will address the priority needs and goals of the strategic plan.

_	a description of its method(s) for distribution for the "Other – Housing Trust Fund" selection based on the entry made on the SP-35 Anticipated Resources screen.
	AP-50 Geographic Distribution: § 91.320(f)- revise this screen to describe the geographic areas of the state in which it will direct assistance during the ensuing program year and provide rationale for its priorities in allocating investment geographically.
	AP-55 Affordable Housing: \S 91.320(g)- revise this screen to specify goals for the number of homeless, non-homeless, and special needs households to be provided affordable housing within the program year.
	AP-65 Homeless and Other Special Needs Activities: § 91.320(h)- revise this screen to describe how HTF will help to address the State's one-year goals and actions for reducing and ending homelessness, if applicable.
	AP-75 Barriers to Affordable Housing: § 91.320(i)- revise this screen to describe how HTF will help with any actions the State's will take during the next year to reduce barriers to affordable housing, if applicable.
	AP-85 Other Actions: § 91.320(j)- revise this screen to describe how HTF will help with any actions the State will take during the next year to carry out the following strategies outlined in the consolidated plan:

- Foster and maintain affordable housing;
- Evaluate and reduce lead-based paint hazards;
- Reduce the number of poverty-level families;
- Develop institutional structure; and
- Enhance coordination.

In addition, the State must identify obstacles to meeting underserved needs and propose actions to overcome those obstacles using HTF funds, if applicable.

HTF Funding Priorities-§ 91.320(k)(5)(i)

The State is responsible for distributing HTF funds throughout the State according to its housing priority needs. In addition to revising the **AP- 30 Method of Distribution** screen in IDIS, the State must respond to the following questions.

1. Will the State distribute HTF funds through grants to subgrantees? If yes, describe the method for distributing HTF funds through grants to subgrantees and how the State will make those funds available to units of general local governments. If no, state N/A. Please attach response if you need additional space.

2. Will the State distribute HTF funds by selecting applications submitted by eligible recipients? If yes, describe the eligibility requirements for applicants as defined in § 93.2- definition of recipient. If no, state N/A. Please attach response if you need additional space.

- 3. Will the State distribute HTF funds by selecting application submitted by eligible recipients? If yes, describe all the criteria that will be used to select applications and the relative importance of these criteria. At a minimum, as required in § 91.320(k)(5)(i), the selection criteria must include:
 - Priority based upon geographic diversity
 - Applicant's ability to obligate HTF funds
 - Applicant's ability to undertake eligible activities in a timely manner
 - For rental housing, the extent to which the project has Federal, State or local project-based rental assistance so rents are affordable to extremely lowincome families
 - For rental housing, the duration of the units' affordability period
 - The merits of the application in meeting the State's priority housing needs (please describe)
 - The extent to which application makes use of non-federal funding sources
 - Other (please describe). Please attach response if you need additional space.

Recipient Application Requirements- § 91.320(k)(5)(ii)

1.	 Will the State require that all recipient applications contain a description of t eligible activities to be conducted with HTF funds as required in § 93.200- Eligible activities? 						
	Yes □	No □					
2.	_	re that each eligible recipient certify that housing assisted with oly with HTF requirements?					
	Yes □	No □					
Perfo	ormance Goals and	Benchmarks- § 91.320(k)(5)(iii)					
measu compl on the Suite	The plan must include performance goals and benchmarks against which the State will measure its progress, consistent with the State's goals established at § 91.315(b)(2). To comply with this requirement, the State will include HTF housing goals in the housing table on the SP-45 Goals and AP-20 Annual Goals and Objectives screens in the eCon Planning Suite consolidated plan template in IDIS.						
VI. OTHER REQUIREMENTS							
V1. U	THER REQUIREME	N15					
		elopment Subsidy Amount- § 91.320(k)(5) and § 93.300(a)					
Maxi The S that c reason geogr limits and m how t descri	mum Per-unit Deve tate must establish it an be invested per-un nable, based on act aphic location of the p used in other federa nust submit them with the HTF maximum p	elopment Subsidy Amount- § 91.320(k)(5) and § 93.300(a) is own maximum limitations on the total amount of HTF funds nit for development of non-luxury housing. The limits must be ual costs, and adjusted for the number of bedrooms and project. The State may choose to develop its own limits or adopt a programs such as HOME or Low-Income Housing Tax Credit its HTF allocation plan. The State must submit a description of er-unit development subsidy amounts were established or a glimits developed for another program and being adopted for					
Maxi The S that c reason geogr limits and m how t descri HTF m	mum Per-unit Deve tate must establish it an be invested per-un nable, based on act aphic location of the p used in other federa nust submit them with the HTF maximum p iption of how existing neet the HTF requiren	elopment Subsidy Amount- § 91.320(k)(5) and § 93.300(a) is own maximum limitations on the total amount of HTF funds nit for development of non-luxury housing. The limits must be ual costs, and adjusted for the number of bedrooms and project. The State may choose to develop its own limits or adopt a programs such as HOME or Low-Income Housing Tax Credit its HTF allocation plan. The State must submit a description of er-unit development subsidy amounts were established or a glimits developed for another program and being adopted for					
Maxi The S that c reason geogr limits and m how t descri HTF m	mum Per-unit Deve tate must establish it an be invested per-un nable, based on act aphic location of the p used in other federa nust submit them with the HTF maximum p iption of how existing neet the HTF requiren ate below what maxim 2016 HTF program.	elopment Subsidy Amount- § 91.320(k)(5) and § 93.300(a) is own maximum limitations on the total amount of HTF funds nit for development of non-luxury housing. The limits must be ual costs, and adjusted for the number of bedrooms and project. The State may choose to develop its own limits or adopt I programs such as HOME or Low-Income Housing Tax Credit its HTF allocation plan. The State must submit a description of er-unit development subsidy amounts were established or a glimits developed for another program and being adopted for nents.					

Rehabilitation Standards - § 91.320(k)(5)(iv) and § 93.301(b)

If the State intends to use its HTF funds for housing being rehabilitated, it must establish rehabilitation standards that all HTF-assisted housing undergoing rehabilitation must meet at the time of project completion in accordance with § 93.301(b). The standards must provide enough details on what work is required, how that work should be performed and what materials should be used. The State's standards may refer to applicable codes or may establish requirements that exceed the minimum requirements of the codes. At a minimum, the rehabilitation standards must address:

- Health and safety;
- Major systems;
- Lead-Based Paint;
- Accessibility;

15

- Disaster Mitigation;
- State and local Codes, Ordinances, and Zoning Requirements; and
- Inspectable Areas and Observable Deficiencies from HUD's Uniform Physical Condition Standards identified by HUD as applicable to HTF-assisted housing.

Indicate below if the State will use HTF funds for rehabilitation of housing.

The State plans to use HTF funds for the rehabilitation of housing and has attached
its rehabilitation standards.

☐ The State will not use HTF funds for rehabilitation of housing.

Resale and/or Recapture Provisions- § 91.320(k)(5)(v) and § 93.304(f)

If the State intends to use HTF funds to assist first-time homebuyers, it must set forth the guidelines for resale or recapture and obtain HUD specific, written approval, as required in § 93.304(f). Approval of the consolidated plan or annual action plan under § 91.500 or the failure to disapprove the consolidated plan or annual action plan does not satisfy the requirement for specific HUD approval for resale or recapture guidelines.

Indicate below if the State intends to use HTF funds for first-time homebuyers.

The State will use HTF funds to assist first-time homebuyers and has attached the applicable resale/recapture provisions.
The State will not use HTF funds to assist first-time homebuyers.

HTF Affordable Homeownership Limits- § 91.320(k)(5)(vi) and § 93.305

HTF funds may only be invested for the provision of modest housing for homeownership. This means the housing has a purchase price for the type of single family housing that does not exceed 95 percent of the median purchase price for the area for newly constructed or standard housing. If the State plans to use HTF funds for homebuyer assistance, and does not use the HTF affordable homeownership limits established by HUD, it must determine 95 percent of the median purchase price for single family housing for designated areas across the State. If the State will determine its own affordable homeownership limits, it must determine the limits using the methodology described in § 93.305(a)(2).

Indicate below if the State will use HTF funds for homeownership housing and what affordable homeownership limits it will use.

The State will use HTF funds for homeownership housing and will use the HUL issued limits.
The State will use HTF funds for homeownership housing and has determined its own affordable homeownership limits and the limits are attached.
The State will not use HTF funds for homeownership housing.

State Limited Beneficiaries or Preferences- § 91.320(k)(5)(vii)

The State may limit the beneficiaries or give preferences to a particular segment of the extremely low-income population only if described in the action plan. Any limitation or preference must not violate non-discrimination requirements at § 93.350 and the State must not limit or give preferences to students. The State may also allow rental housing owners to limit tenants or give a preference in accordance with § 93.303(d)(3), only if such limitation or preference is described in the action plan.

Indicate below if the State will limit beneficiaries or give preferences to a particular segment of the extremely low-income population.

The State will limit beneficiaries and/or give preferences to the following segments of the extremely low-income population. The groups listed have also been identified in the action plan.
The State will not limit beneficiaries and/or give preferences to any segments of the extremely low-income population.

Refinancing of Existing Debt- § 91.320(k)(5)(viii) and § 93.201(b)

If the State will use HTF funds for refinancing of existing debt, it must establish refinancing guidelines and include them in its consolidated plan. The State's refinancing guidelines must describe the conditions under which it will refinance existing debt. At a minimum, the guidelines must demonstrate that rehabilitation is the primary eligible activity and ensure that this requirement is met by establishing a minimum level of rehabilitation per unit or a required ratio between rehabilitation and refinancing. Refinancing of existing debt is only eligible if it is necessary to reduce the overall housing costs and to make the housing more affordable.

Indicate below if the State will permit the refinancing of existing debt.

- ☐ The State will permit the refinancing of existing debt and the conditions under which the State will refinance existing debt are attached.
- ☐ The State will not permit the refinancing of existing debt.

VII. GRANTEE CERTIFICATIONS

In addition to submitting an HTF allocation plan, the State must submit all the required certifications identified at § 91.225 (for new action plans). If the State is amending the action plan to include HTF, it must resubmit the following certification to include HTF:

□ Consistency with plan- The jurisdiction must submit a certification that the housing activities to be undertaken with CDBG, HOME, ESG, and HOPWA funds are consistent with the strategic plan. Where the HOPWA funds are to be received by a city that is the most populous unit of general local government in an EMSA, it must obtain and keep on file certifications of consistency from the authorized public officials for each other locality in the EMSA in which housing assistance is provided. HTF must be included in this certification.

VIII. REQUIRED FORMS

In addition to submitting an HTF allocation plan, the State must submit and/or complete the following standard forms for its HTF program.

- Standard form- 424: <u>Application for Federal Assistance</u> (§ 91.320(a))
- Standard form- 1199 A: <u>Direct Deposit Sign up Form</u>

Maximum Per-unit Development Subsidy Amount

	Studio	One Bedroom	Two Bedroom	Three Bedroom	Four Bedroom
City of New York	\$105,000	\$110,000	\$135,000	\$155,000	\$170,000
New York City Metropolitan (Nassau, Suffolk & Westchester Counties)	\$125,000	\$130,000	\$155,000	\$180,000	\$200,000
Rest of State	\$85,000	\$90,000	\$105,000	\$120,000	\$135,000

Maximum Per-unit Development Subsidy Amount Methodology

In establishing the maximum per-unit development subsidy limits for HTF funding, HFA adopted the premise that the allowable amount of HTF funding should be equivalent to the difference in debt that can be supported by an HTF unit with rent at or below 30% AMI and an affordable unit with rent at 60% AMI, which is the rent level at which HFA affordable housing project are typically underwritten.

The variance in supportable debt was established by first calculating the difference in annual per-unit revenue between a unit with the maximum 30% AMI rent and the maximum 60% AMI rent using the current rent limits established by HUD, and then increasing this amount by a factor of one-third to accommodate the possibility of projects that may need to be underwritten with rents below 30% AMI. This figure was then used to calculate the reduced amount of debt that could be supported assuming a 1.15 debt service coverage ratio and a 5% mortgage interest rate. The resulting figure was then rounded up to the nearest increment of \$5,000 to establish the maximum per-unit HTF subsidy limit.

HFA has established per-unit maximum limits on HTF funding for studio, one-, two-, three-, and four bedroom units for three separate areas of the State: the City of New York, the New York City Metropolitan Area (Nassau, Suffolk, and Westchester Counties), and the Rest of the State. Limits for the New York City Metropolitan Area were calculated by averaging this data for the Nassau-Suffolk, NY HMFA and the Westchester County, NY Statutory Exception Area. Limits for the Rest of the State were calculated by averaging this data for the Albany-Schenectady-Troy, NY MSA, the Buffalo-Cheektowaga-Niagara Falls, NY MSA, the Rochester, NY HMFA, and the Syracuse, NY MSA.

These figures represent per-unit maximum limits of HTF funding only. The amount of resources awarded to a project by HFA may include other sources of non-HTF subsidy that may be available, which in total may exceed the maximum per-unit HTF funding limit. Projects will only be awarded the total amount of resources necessary for the financial feasibility of the project as determined by HFA underwriting.